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B. Coercion and Enticement

37. On or about February 2, 2018, within the Eastern District of New York

and elsewhere, the defendant ROBERT SYLVESTER KELLY, together with others, did

knowingly and intentionally persuade, induce, entice and coerce an individual, to wit: Jane

Doe #5, to travel in interstate commerce, to engage in sexual activity for which a person can

be charged with a criminal offense, to wit: violations of New York Penal Law Section 120.20

(reckless endangerment) and New York Public Health Law Section 2307 (exposure of

infectious venereal disease), in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(a)

and 2.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1962(c), 1963 and 3551 et seq.^

COUNT TWO

(Mann Act Transportation - Jane Doe #5)

38. On or about May 18,2017, within the Eastern District of New York

and elsewhere, the defendant ROBERT SYLVESTER KELLY, also known as "R. Kelly,"

together with others, did knowingly and intentionally transport an individual, to wit: Jane

Doe #5, an individual whose identity is known to the Grand Jury, in interstate commerce,

with intent that such individual engage in sexual activity for which a person can be charged

with a criminal offense, to wit: violations of New York Penal Law Section 120.20 (reckless

endangerment) and New York Public Health Law Section 2307 (exposure of infectious

venereal disease).

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2421(a), 2 and 3551 ̂  seq.)
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COUNT THREE

(Mann Act Coercion and Enticement - Jane Doe #5)

39. On or about May 18,2017, within the Eastern District of New York

and elsewhere, the defendant ROBERT SYLVESTER KELLY, also known as "R. Kelly,"

together with others, did knowingly and intentionally persuade, induce, entice and coerce an

individual, to wit: Jane Doe #5, to travel in interstate commerce, to engage in sexual activity

for which a person can be charged with a criminal offense, to wit: violations of New York

Penal Law Section 120.20 (reckless endangerment) and New York Public Health Law

Section 2307 (exposure of infectious venereal disease).

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(a), 2 and 3551 et seq.)

COUNT FOUR

(Mann Act Transportation - Jane Doe #5)

40. On or about February 2, 2018, within the Eastern District of New York

and elsewhere, the defendant ROBERT SYLVESTER KELLY, also known as "R. Kelly,"

together with others, did knowingly and intentionally transport an individual, to wit: Jane

Doe #5, in interstate commerce, with intent that such individual engage in sexual activity for

which a person can be charged with a criminal offense, to wit: violations of New York Penal

Law Section 120.20 (reckless endangerment) and New York Public Health Law Section

2307 (exposure of infectious venereal disease).

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2421(a), 2 and 3551 et seq.)

COUNT FIVE

(Mann Act Coercion and Enticement - Jane Doe #5)

41. On or about February 2, 2018, within the Eastern District of New York

and elsewhere, the defendant ROBERT SYLVESTER KELLY, also known as "R. Kelly,"
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together with others, did knowingly and intentionally persuade, induce, entice and coerce an

individual, to wit: Jane Doe #5, to travel in interstate commerce, to engage in sexual activity

for which a person can be charged with a criminal offense, to wit: violations of New York

Penal Law Section 120.20 (reckless endangerment) and New York Public Health Law

Section 2307 (exposure of infectious venereal disease).

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2422(a), 2 and 3551 et seq.)

CRIMINAL FORFEITURE ALLEGATION AS TO COUNT ONE

42. The United States hereby gives notice to the defendant that, upon his

conviction of the offense charged in Count One, the government will seek forfeiture in

accordance with Title 18, United States Code, Section 1963(a), which requires any person

convicted of such offense to forfeit: (a) any interest the person acquired or maintained in

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1962; (b) any interest in, security of, claim

against or property or contractual right of any kind affording a source of influence over any

enterprise which the person has established, operated, controlled, conducted or participated

in the conduct of, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1962; and (c) any

property constituting, or derived from, any proceeds which the person obtained, directly or

indirectly, from racketeering activity in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section

1962.

43. If any of the above-described forfeitable property, as a result of any act

or omission of the defendant:

(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

(b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

(c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
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(d) has been substantially diminished in value; or

(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be

divided without difficulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section

1963(m), to seek forfeiture of any other property of the defendant up to the value of the

forfeitable property described in this forfeiture allegation.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1963(a) and 1963(m))

A TRUE BILL

FOREPERSON

RICHARD P. DONOGHUE

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

ACTI
PURSUANT TOAs C.F.R. 0.13Q

Case 1:19-cr-00286-AMD  Document 3  Filed 07/10/19  Page 17 of 18 PageID #: 43 



   

F.#: 2019R00029

FORM DBD-34

JUN. 85

No.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

EASTERN District of NEW YORK

CRIME^^AL DIVISION

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

VS.

ROBERT SYLVESTER KELLY,

Defendant.

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT

(T. 18, U.S.C., §§ 1962(c), 1963, 1963(a), 1963(m), 2421(a), 2422(a), 2
and 3551 et seq.")

A true bill.

Foreperson

Filed in open court this day,

of A.D.20

Clerk

Bail, $

Elizabeth Geddes, Assistant U.S. Attorney (718) 254-6430
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